
OSSEO CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

February 24, 2020 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Duane Poppe called the regular meeting of the Osseo City Council to order at 
7:00 p.m. on Monday, February 24, 2020. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 
 

Members present: Councilmembers Juliana Hultstrom, Harold E. Johnson, Mark Schulz, 
Larry Stelmach, and Mayor Duane Poppe.  
 
Staff present:  City Administrator Riley Grams, City Planner Nancy Abts, and City 
Attorney Mary Tietjen.   
 
Others present:  Kristin Bahner, Bryan Ahner, Preston Kroska, James Kelly, Kenny & 
Sarita Nelson, Barb & Jerome Plzak, Jason Hegerle, Arianna Marciniak, Jerry Shoults, 
Mike Wiley, and Roseanna & Dave Garibaldi. 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  

Poppe led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA [Additions - Deletions] 
 

Poppe asked for additions or deletions to the Agenda.   
 
A motion was made by Stelmach, seconded by Johnson, to accept the Agenda as 
presented.  The motion carried 5-0. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
  

A. Receive EDA Minutes of February 10 
B. Approve City Council Minutes of February 10 
C. Receive PSAC Minutes of February 5 
D. Receive January American Legion Gambling Report 
E. Receive January Lions Club Gambling Report 
F. Receive January Hockey Association Gambling Report 
G. Receive January Fire Relief Association Gambling Report 
H. Approve Training for Public Works Department 
I. Receive Planning Commission Minutes of February 18 
 
Stelmach requested the Planning Commission Minutes from February 18 be amended to 
show he was in attendance.  
 
A motion was made by Stelmach, seconded by Hultstrom, to approve the Consent 
Agenda as amended.  The motion carried 5-0. 

llarson
Typewritten text
5 B



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 2 

 
6. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR  

 
Brian Ahner, 601  3rd Avenue NE, discussed Councilmember Schulz and the false 
statements he made to the press and constituents along with the false accusations he 
made against him.  He requested Councilmember Schulz provide evidence on the 
personal attacks he made to his employer.  He noted Councilmember Schulz spoke to 
his boss and what he said was inappropriate.  He recommended Councilmember Schulz 
be removed from his position for personally attacking him as this was an abuse of 
power.  
 
Preston Kroska, 601  2nd Avenue NE, stated he agreed with Brian Ahner and the 
statements he made.  He believed the behavior of Councilmember Schulz was 
inappropriate. He commented on the sidewalks within the 2020 street improvement 
project. He asked why bump outs were included for the sidewalks.  He noted he could 
not find any survey reports from WSB and requested these be provided to the City.  He 
discussed the cost of the street improvement project and noted that while the roadway 
width was being reduced, the expense of the sidewalks would increase overall project 
costs by $120,000.  He commented on the deferred payment plan the City had in place 
for the elderly.  He explained he had asked staff if aprons could go over the City right-of-
way and was still waiting for an answer. He expressed frustration with the fact the 
Council was going to do what they wanted to do versus what the citizens wanted. 
 

7. SPECIAL BUSINESS  
 
 A. HONOR BARB PLZAK FOR 15 YEARS ON PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

City Administrator Riley Grams explained Barb Plzak has served the Osseo community as 
a member of the Planning Commission for 15 years, several of which she led as the Chair 
of the Planning Commission. Barb recently resigned from her post to focus on other 
duties. He noted that she takes a lot of pride in the wonderful work the Commission has 
done and feels confident that the current Planning Commission is in good hands.   
  
Grams reported Barb was a member of the Planning Commission when he joined the 
City as a Planning Intern in 2012. He explained Ms. Plzak was patient with him as he 
learned the City and helped navigate the Planning Commission through various land use 
applications. Grams said it takes a special person to give back to their community for 15 
years, and it has been his pleasure to work alongside Barb for these years.  Staff and the 
Council wish Barb well in all her future endeavors.  A round of applause was offered by 
all in attendance.  
 

 B. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE FROM REPRESENTATIVE KRISTIN BAHNER 
 

Representative Kristin Bahner introduced herself to the Council and provided the City 
with an update from the State legislature.  She explained she was working to find 
effective ways to get the job done on time and on budget.  She reported she has been 
focusing on bringing people together in order to get bills across the finish line.  She 
stated it has been a tremendous honor for her to serve as a local representative. She 
commented on the funding she had requested for TH 610 and the expansion of the 
North Metro Range. She discussed the Hometown Heroes bill and described the support 



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 3 

that would be offered to EMS personnel. She commented on how she was working to 
create fair co-pays for chronic conditions. She stated another one of her key focuses was 
taxes and she described how she was working to create tax breaks for working families 
and seniors. She explained she was proud of the strides being made in the education 
system.  She left the Council with a handout of the bills she would be sponsoring in 
2020.  She thanked the Council for its time and encouraged the Councilmembers to 
contact her at any time with comments or questions.  A round of applause was offered 
by all in attendance.  
 
Poppe thanked Representative Bahner for her update and service to the community. 
 

 C. ACCEPT DONATIONS (Resolution) 
 

Grams stated the City has received the following donations: 
 
Donor      Amount/Item   Designated Fund   
Osseo Lions Club       $  3,000     Music/Movies in the Park  
Sharon Wilken         $     100     Police Department  
Harold E. & Gayle Johnson     $     300     Beautification  
(in memory of Carl Bloomquist, Ed Gelle, & Kathleen Vanderheyden) 
 
Staff recommended the Council accept the donations. 
 
A motion was made by Stelmach, seconded by Hultstrom, to adopt Resolution No. 
2020-13 accepting donations from the Osseo Lions Club, Sharon Wilken, and Harold E. 
& Gayle Johnson. The motion carried 5-0. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS – None. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. APPROVE STREET TREE STUDY WITH WSB 
 
City Planner Nancy Abts stated Osseo approved an agreement for Hennepin County’s 
2020 Healthy Tree Canopy funding on January 13. The agreement included $10,000 for 
studying the conditions that would need to be met to plant new trees in the public Right 
of Way.  She commented on the work that would be completed by the grant and 
recommended approval. 
 
Johnson asked if trees were being replanted in the boulevard.  Abts explained the 
proposal would be to complete a study that would evaluate whether this was feasible. 
 
A motion was made by Stelmach, seconded by Johnson, to approve the Proposal from 
WSB for a Street Tree Study. The motion carried 5-0. 
 
B. APPROVE ELKS ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 315 6TH AVENUE 

SE (Resolution) 
 



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 4 

Abts stated this proposed use would include a bar providing liquor service under a 
“club” on-sale liquor license, an entertainment area with a stage and space for club 
meetings and assembly, charitable gambling, and administrative offices. A “club” on-
sale retail liquor license is one type of liquor license authorized by state statute. Under 
the license, liquor may only be served to club members and bona fide guests, not the 
general public.  
  
Abts explained the proposal uses space in an existing building owned by Wiley 
Properties. The Elks have operated for many years at a location at the intersection of 
Brookdale Drive and Xerxes Avenue North in Brooklyn Park. The CUP for that property 
has been in place since 1998. Brooklyn Park staff did not report land use complaints 
arising from the use. Prior to Brooklyn Park, the lodge was in Crystal.  
  
Abts reported current club membership is approximately 175 members, with 150 of 
those members residing in the metro area. Regular administrative meetings are held on 
Wednesday nights and draw between 8 to 15 members. General membership meetings 
are held only as needed and typically draw 30 to 40 members. Currently, Thursdays are 
the busiest day for the club, with an average 40 to 50 members and their guests in 
attendance over the course of the evening.  
  
Abts indicated the club proposes regular operating hours of 4:30 p.m. to 11:00 p.m., 
Monday through Saturday. On weeknights the club often closes at 9:00 p.m. when 
attendance is low. The club is open on select Sundays for football games, with operating 
hours pegged to the hours of the game.  She commented further on the request and 
noted the Planning Commission recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
with conditions. 
 
Johnson asked if the Elks would have food on the premises.  Jerry Shoults, Elks Lodge 
representative, explained the Elks would have pizzas and other microwaveables.   
 
Johnson questioned if the Thanksgiving dinner would be held at the Osseo facility.  Mr. 
Shoults indicated this meal would be held at the Osseo facility and the food would be 
catered in. 
 
Johnson inquired if dinners would be cooked and served onsite.  Mr. Shoults stated this 
would not occur at the Osseo site.  
 
Johnson requested further information on how many people would be attending a 
Thursday night meeting.  Mr. Shoults explained 40 to 50 people attend these events. 
 
Johnson asked if a bartender would be hired by the Elks Lodge.  He explained all 
bartenders would have to attend City sponsored alcohol training. Mr. Shoults reported 
he would have both hired and volunteer bartenders.  
 
Johnson questioned if the building would have handicap parking stalls near the 
entrance. Mr. Shoults stated he would want two handicap parking stalls allocated near 
the entrance of the building.  
 
Johnson expressed concern with the number of parking spaces this use would require.  
He noted that during the winter months parking spaces would be lost to snow piles. He 



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 5 

stated he did not want Elks Lodge parking to spill over onto the adjacent streets and 
neighborhood. Mr. Shoults stated the parking concerns were addressed with Mr. Wiley 
and he would be removing trailers in the parking lot.  
 
Stelmach requested further information from the property owner regarding the snow 
removal.  Mike Wiley, Wiley Properties, discussed how the parking lot has been cleared 
this winter and explained he would haul snow away if the parking stalls to the rear of 
the building were needed.   
 
Stelmach questioned if two handicap parking stalls can be marked on the parking lot 
near the entrance to the building.  Mr. Wiley stated he could have two spots marked. 
 
Stelmach requested further information regarding the donations the Elks makes to the 
community each year.  Mr. Shoults discussed the fundraisers the Elks would be holding 
each year and noted grants would also be applied for.  He reported the funds raised 
(approximately $30,000 per year) by the Elks would be contributed back to the 
community, with a focus on youth and veterans.  He stated the Elks hold meat raffles 
and bingo, along with other fundraisers.   
 
Stelmach indicated the Planning Commission recommended a stop sign be added at the 
south side of 6th Avenue SE.  Grams reported the Planning Commission made this 
recommendation after receiving comments from adjacent residents.  He noted staff and 
the Police Department supported this recommendation.  
 
Stelmach explained a resident requested the barrier be put back up at the end of 6th 
Avenue SE.  Grams commented this was a concern for police, fire, and snow plow 
drivers. He recommended the barrier not be put back.  
 
Johnson stated he supported the installation of a stop sign at the south end of 6th 
Avenue NE.  Grams reported staff would have this stop sign installed. 
 
A motion was made by Johnson, seconded by Stelmach, to adopt Resolution No. 
2020-14 approving a Conditional Use Permit for the property at 315 6th Avenue SE 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1)  Applicable Provisions.  This permit is subject to the requirements of the City’s 
ordinances and the Applicant is required to comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, and to obtain such other 
permits and permissions as may be required. Local and state regulations and 
ordinances shall include but are not limited to the following:  
a.  The on-sale intoxicating beverages shall adhere to all applicable federal, 

state, and county statutes and regulations in addition to local ordinances;  
b.  Entertainment, including musical entertainment, occurring on the property 

shall not disturb the peace, quiet and comfort of any person nearby, per 
Osseo City Code § 93.18 (F) and, per Osseo City Code § 93.18 (V) (d), 
entertainment that is plainly audible at the property line between the hours 
of 10:00 pm an 7:00 am shall be prima facie evidence of a violation, unless 
the entertainment is part of a city-permitted activity;  

c.  Any trash enclosure must be properly screened from public view, per Osseo 
City Code § 153.057 (B) (1) (d);  



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 6 

d.  The building appearance shall be maintained so that it adheres to Osseo City 
Code § 153.053; and  

e.  Signage relating to the use, including temporary signage, shall adhere to 
Osseo City Code § 153.090;  

2)  Exterior lighting. Downlighting shall be added to the site and maintained to 
sufficiently illuminate the entrance and required parking spaces. No light or glare 
shall be directed onto adjacent properties.  

3)  Security cameras. The applicant shall install and maintain video security cameras 
to monitor the exterior entrance area and the bar area where on-sale liquor 
service occurs.   

4)  Open to inspection. During any hours at which the club is open, the club shall be 
open to any State or County official and to any City official or police officer for 
inspection to determine compliance with the stated conditionals of approval;   

5)  Parking. The applicant must provide on-site parking as required by Osseo City 
Code 153.079. Parking may be provided as part of a Joint Parking Facility 
provided the requirements of Osseo City Code § 153.077 are met. The parking 
spaces shall be continuously maintained in a clear and visible manner in 
compliance with the approved site plan.  

6)  Occupancy. Occupancy of the building for the conditional use shall be consistent 
with the plans included as Exhibit B. Occupancy of additional tenant bays or 
other portions of the building for the Conditional Use shall require an 
amendment of this Conditional Use Permit.   

7)  Building appearance. To enhance and maintain an environment consistent with 
Comprehensive Plan Guidance for a district with convenient auto access and high 
visibility, improvements to the building exterior shall be completed no later than 
February 24, 2021. Improvements shall include installation and maintenance of: 
a. Signage clearly identifying the club, located near the entrance and legible from 
the public Right of Way; and  b. Signage clearly identifying the club’s operating 
hours legible from outside the entrance;  

8)  No Waiver.  Failure by the City to take action with respect to any violation of any 
condition, covenant, or term of this permit shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 
such condition, covenant, or term or any subsequent violation of the same or 
any other condition, covenant, or term.  

9)  Revocation.  The violation of any terms or conditions of this permit including, but 
not limited to, any applicable federal, state, or local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances, may result in revocation of the permit.  The Applicant shall be given 
written notice of any violation and reasonable time, as determined by the City, 
to cure the violation before a revocation of the permit may occur.   

10) Binding Effect.  This permit and its conditions are binding on the Owner and 
Applicant, their successors and assigns, and shall run with the Property, and shall 
not in any way be affected by the subsequent sale, lease, or other change from 
current ownership, until the permit is terminated or revoked as provided herein.  
The obligations of the Applicant under this permit shall also be the obligations of 
the current and any subsequent owners of the Property.  

11) Acceptance of Conditions.  Utilization of the Property for any of the uses allowed 
by this permit shall automatically be deemed acceptance of, and agreement to, 
the terms and conditions of the permit without qualification, reservation, or 
exception. 

12) Two handicap parking stalls shall be allocated near the entrance of the building. 
 



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 7 

The motion carried 5-0.  
 

C.   CONSIDER WATERSHED COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 
 
Grams commented at the January 13 Council meeting the City Council appointed an 
Osseo resident (John Roach) as an alternate to the Shingle Creek and West Mississippi 
Watershed Management Commissions. Historically the Council has appointed two 
Councilmembers to these positions (one Councilmember as the regular Commission 
appointee, and another Councilmember to the alternate position). This has been the 
practice since the Watershed Districts were formed and the member cities appointed 
Commissioners.   
  
Grams explained the Council originally considered appointing the standard two 
Councilmembers. However, Councilmember Johnson noted that he knew of a local 
resident who had interest in serving on this Commission and representing the City of 
Osseo. John Roach recently moved to Osseo from Brooklyn Park, where he served in the 
same role for that community.   
  
Grams reported after additional discussion the Council motioned to make the various 
appointments, including appointing Councilmember Johnson to the Commission 
position, the John Roach as the alternate.   
  
Grams stated shortly after it was brought to the attention of City Staff that the vacancy 
notice must be published at least once in the newspaper. City Attorney Mary Tietjen 
researched MN Statute 103B.227 and noted that indeed it includes a provision that 
notices of vacancies on watershed management boards are to be published at least 
once in a newspaper. As a matter of practice, however, this provision is rarely followed 
because Councilmembers have historically been appointed to these positions and the 
Watersheds have never required it or inquired about it. In doing additional research, 
City Attorney Tietjen noted that she had been advised by the Watershed District 
Attorney that, to his knowledge, publication of vacancies does not occur and there have 
been no issues associated with it.  Staff commented further on the options available to 
the City regarding the watershed commission alternate.  
 
Johnson stated he started this matter and recommended John Roach be removed from 
the position and that a Councilmember be appointed as the alternate for the balance of 
2020.  He indicated the Council could then reconsider the appointment of John Roach in 
2021. 
 
Stelmach asked if after the position was posted in the paper, the Council could revisit 
the watershed appointment for the remainder of 2020. 
 
City Attorney Mary Tietjen commented on the publication requirement.  She noted she 
researched this and spoke with the watershed attorney.  She stated there were no legal 
consequences if the Council were to move forward with the appointment of John 
Roach.  She indicated she has heard positive remarks regarding Mr. Roach with respect 
to his knowledge and background. She explained the Council could ratify their 
appointment if other candidates were to apply for the vacancy.   
 
Johnson asked if Schulz would serve as the alternate for the remainder of 2020.   



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 8 

 
Schulz stated he could serve in this capacity.  
 
Stelmach recommended Schulz only serve as the alternate until the vacancy was posted 
and the Council could reconsider the candidates that apply for the alternate position. 
 
Hultstrom stated she could support this recommendation. 
 
A motion was made by Stelmach, seconded by Hultstrom, to retain John Roach as the 
Watershed Commission alternate and direct staff to publish the Watershed vacancy 
with the applicants being brought back for further consideration. The motion carried 
5-0. 
 
D. APPROVE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
Grams reviewed the Accounts Payable with the Council. 
 
A motion was made by Johnson, seconded by Stelmach, to approve the Accounts 
Payable as presented. The motion carried 5-0. 

 
11. ADMINISTRATOR REPORT  
 

Grams reported on Thursday, February 13, the City received a notarized petition titled, 
“Petition from residents to City of Osseo to eliminate the sidewalks from the 2020 
Street Project scope of work.”  A copy of the petition will be included with these 
minutes, per City Code 30.24(E). 
 
Grams thanked Barb Plzak for her 15 years of public service to the City on the Planning 
Commission.  

 
12. COUNCIL AND ATTORNEY REPORTS    
 

Abts stated online registration for the summer youth programs would go live on 
Monday, March 2.   
 
Johnson thanked Barb Plzak for her hard work and dedicated leadership on the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Hultstrom reported at the end of January she attended a conference sponsored by the 
League of Minnesota Cities.  She stated her biggest take away from this event was to 
treat others with kindness, respect, and integrity.  
 
Stelmach thanked Barb Plzak for being thoughtful and serving the City of Osseo for 15 
years.  
 
Stelmach explained discrimination was not acceptable and he stated since he was 
serving on the City Council, he has not observed this behavior.  He commented on the 
bylaw changes that were proposed in 2018 by the EDA.  He discussed the process that 
was followed for filling committee positions.  He noted each Councilmember has an 
open opportunity to state what they could bring to the committee.  He reported each 



City Council Minutes, February 24, 2020, Page 9 

member of the Council was encouraged to vet candidates, ideas, and facts before a 
vote. He believed the Council valued people despite gender, background, or age.  
 
Poppe thanked Barb Plzak for being a willing servant to the City of Osseo.     

 
13. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Poppe encouraged residents to participate in the Presidential Nomination Primary and 
vote on Tuesday, March 3.  He reported absentee voting was available at City Hall 
Monday through Thursday through March 2 from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; on Friday, 
February 28, from 7:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.; and on Saturday, February 29, from 10:00 
a.m. to 3:00 p.m.   

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

A motion was made by Johnson, seconded by Stelmach, to adjourn the City Council 
meeting at 8:09 p.m.   The motion carried 5-0. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Heidi Guenther  
Minute Maker Secretarial 
 








	5B  Council Minutes.pdf (p.1-9)
	5B_i_petition.pdf (p.10-12)

